
,
I
~..

\. i

UNBESTRICTED

E/CN.4/SR 128
17 June 1949

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

Nations Dnies

CONSEIL
ECONOMIQUE
.ET SOCIAL·

Draft international covenant on human rights : a:·ticle23

(E/CN.4/296) ELCN.4/82!Add.10!Bev.l) (discussion continued)

COliTEIiTS:

Chairman: Mrs. F~ D. ROOSEVELT United States of America

Rapporteur: Mr. C. MALIK Lebanon

Members: Mr. SHANN Australia

Mr. CRA. China

Mr. M. SOEBENSEN Denmark ~,..
Mr. O. LOljTFI Egypt

Mr. R. CASSIN France

Mr. GABCIA BAUER Guatemala

Mrs. MEETA India

Mr. ENTEZAM Iran

..

United Nations

ECONOMIC
AND

.sOCIAL COUNCIL

COMMISSION ON HlJML\.N RIGHTS

Fifth Session

SUMMARY RECORD OF TEE ONE H1JNDBED AND TWENTY-EIGHTH MEETING

Held at Lake Success, New York,
.n Wednesday, 15 June 1949, at 11 a.m.

Any corrections of this record shoul.d be submitted in writing,

in either of the working languages (English or French), and within

two working days, to Mr.• E. Delavenay,'Director, Official Records

Division, Room F-852, Lake Success. Corrections should be accompanied
f . •

by or incorporated in a letter, on h~aded notepaper, bearing the

appropriate symbol number and enclosed in an envelope marked rrUrgent ll
•

, . Cc;>!r_~,q,t.;i,J?n!3~"g~:o.~,e",,,d©alt with more speedily by the services concerned

CwEeG,¥tloM.J li:tJ.~ ite good enough also to incorporate them in a

~ mimeograPhe,d .c~py of the record. (tDp) , ' .
.JUN20 1~}4.),

UNliEO NATIONS ~

ARCHIVF:S .J
!L-:""""" " wt';;:.1lr.;,~....,:1<7~~i'll,fjII;:l:~··

. I



E/CN.4/SR 128
Page 2
Members: (Continued)

Mr. AQUINO

Mr. KOVALENKO

Mr. PAVLOV

Miss M. BOWIE

Mr. J. MORA

Mr. J. VILFAN

Philippines

Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic

Union of Soviet Socialist Republics

United Kingdom

Uruguay

Yugoslavia

.l,

\
I

Oonsultants from nono-governmental org,a:rli.~1'l'i:l.ons:

Oategory A: 1

Category B:

Secretariat:

Miss SENDER

Miss STUART

Mr. PEBLZWEIG

Mrs. G. AIETA

Miss C. SCBAEFER

Mr. STEIN-ER

Mr. FELLER

Mr. HUMPBREY

Miss KITCHEN

AmeT1can Federation of Labor

World Federation of Trade Unions

World Jewish Congress

Catholic International Union for
Social Service

International Union of Catholic
Women's Leagues

Commission of the Churches on
International Affairs

Legal Department

Representative of the Secretary­
General

Secretary of the Commission

/DBAFT INTERNATIONAL·

I1



DRAFT INTERNATIONAL COVENANT ON RTJrvT.AN RIGHTS: ARTICLE 23 (E/CN.4/296..

E/CN.4/82/Add.10/Rev.l) (discussion continued)

The CBAIR~.AN announced that only consecutive interpretation

services would be available at that meeting. ~

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) drew attention

to the fact that the Secretariat, while knowing that the Trusteeship

Council and the Atomic Energy Commission had meetings scheduled for

that morning, had previously promised that simultaneous interpretation

would be available for the Commission on Human Rights. In view of the

short time remaining at the Commission's disposal that was most important,

since consecutive interpretation took three times as long as simultaneous

and constituted a considerable hindrance to the Commission's work.

At Geneva he had been told that it was not always possible to service

three meetings with simultaneous interpretation, but he was a~azed that

that should also be the case at Headquarters.

He pointed out that his delegation was most anxious to present and

discuss proposed additional articles dealing with such important subjects

as the right to work, the right to leisure, the right to social security

and the right to free education. He had the impression_that technical

obstacles, such as the lack of simultaneous interpretation, arose most

frequently whenever his delegation wished to expedite tte work in order

to have time to discuss important proposals. The Commission should

insist on simultaneous interpretation for the afternoon's meeting and

for subsequent meetings.

The CHAIRMAN stated that every effort would be made to provide

simultaneous interpretation for the afternoon meeting and pointed out

that the problem was purely a bUdgetary one since it cost more to provide

the additional teams of simultaneous interpreters necessary to service

all the meetings. She rejected the USSR representative's imputation

that the delay was in any way intentional.

She appealed to representatives to speak as briefly as possible

in order to expedite the Commission's work.

/Mr. FELLER



Mr. FEIJER (Legal Department) said he had been asked to

analyze article 23 and refer to precedents in \ nlted Nations procedure.
The original drafting committee text for article 23 (E/CN.4/296) provided
for the system of accession to the draft covenant; the United states

amendment (E/CN.4/296) provided both for the system of accession and

for the system of signature followed by ratification.

Originally in international instruments the system of signature

had been followed and that had later been supplemented by the system

of acoession. In League of Nations and United Nattons praotice the system

.J generally adopted had been that of accession. In the case of accession

no previous signature was necessary -- the state merely ~eposited an

instrument of accession.

Quoting s:pecific examples} :Mr. Feller said. tha,t the General

Convention on Privileges and Immunities of the United Nations provided

solely for the system of accession. In other cases, both signature and

accession might be used. For example} the Protocol on Narcotic Drugs

was open either for signature o~ for acce:ptance by the deposit of a

formal instrument (acoe:ptance) in that case) being the same as accession);

the Convention on Freedom of Information was open for signature and

for ratification by States in accordance with their constitutional

praotices) and was also open for acoession; the Convention on Genocide

differed slightly from.' the other two in that it 'Was open for 'signature

fora certain ]6riod of time, after Which it might be ratified by an

instrument of accession.

He :pointed out that legally there was no difference between

signature and accession or acce:ptance of a convention but that oustom

varied because certain States felt that the ceremony of signature had.

a symbolic value. The sim:plest procedure was that of accesaf.on, It was

for the Commission'to decide as a matter of policy Whether it wished

mere~ the sim:ply :prooedure of accession} or both accession and signature

as suggested in the United States emendnerrt., !As a drafting amendment to

the United States amendment he suggested. that the first two paragraphs

might be oombined. to read "This Covenant shall be open for signature

or accession ••• ", whtch -was the fOX'Illu.la used in the Protocol on Narcotic
Drugs.

'E/CN.4/SR 128
Page 4

With regard to the Question of which States might become :p~ties to

the Covenant he pointed. out that the original taxt admitted Members of the

United Nation, States parties to the Statute of the International Court of

./Justice and



l

1

1
!

t
I

{
r

J
~'~

/1
d
\
wlIl
*~,'.r.·.i,;,~.~",j
'»"1
.'--'

/
/

lit came

Justice and any other State declared eligible by the General Assembly}

whereas the United States amendment provided that all States might aocede ,

No United Nations multilateral convention had sofaI' been deolared open

for accession by all States; such con.ventions had merely given the

General Assembly or the Economic and Social Council the o:ption of

deciding Whether non~member States might become :parties to them. In

the case of the Protocol on Narcotio Drugs the General Assembly had.

decid.ed that all non-member states might ratify it.

The CHAIRMAN reminded the Commission that, in the case of

the Oonvention on the Gathering and Internat:t.onal Transmission of News,

the Third Oommittee} and later the General Assembly, had voted in favour

of the system of signature and ratification followed by accession,

although the basic document had provided only for accession. That was

significant since it implied that the system of signature had. been felt

to have advantages over the other. She accepted Mr. Feller's drafting

amendment.

Mr. SOEFENSEN (Denmark) thanked Mr. Feller for his statement.

The Danish delegation would have ]referred the procedure adopted in

connexion with the Convention on Genocide, but since there was no proposal

to that effeot before the Commission, it would be willing maccept the

United States proposal with the ohange suggested by the Secretariat.

With regard. to the question of which States were to be allowed

to adhere to the Covenant, he considered that the precedent of limiting

acceptance to States Members of the United Nations and. non-member States

approved by the General Assembly should be closeiy followed..

He recalled. that the Oommission had. before it the United Stat,es

amendment to the effect that the Covenant should enter into force after.

ratification by fifteen States, and the French proposal (E/CN.4/82/Ad.d.l/

Rev.l), stipulating that the Oovenant should only come into force lI a s soon

as two~thirds of the Members of the United. Nations, inoluding at least

two permanent Members of the Becuxi ty Oounc t L" had. deposdtedthe:!'r

instruments of accession. In view of the importance of the Covenant,

he believed that a large number of ratifications should be secured befor~



!JIII'X&-""

:t

E/CN.4/SR 128
Page 6

it came into force. He therefore tended to support the French proposal

"but considered that a vote on the mattEfr should "be taken. He would

however be prepared to accept the United states proposal) if the number

of ratifications was raised from fifteen to tw~nty 'or twenty-five.

The CHAIRMAN, speaking in her capacity as representative of

the United States, said that her delegation would not press for keeping

the number of requisite ratifications at fifteen. It had "been suggested

in the' first place merely as a number small enough to permit the early

entry into force of the Covenant •.

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said, in

connexion with the Secre·taria:tls analysis of procedures for the acceptance

of international conventions, that he believed an incorrect statement had

been made with regard to the 1948 Protocol on Narcotic Drugs. The

articles of the Protocol did not make acceptance open to all States. He

quoted article 5 of the ~otocol which provided that only such non-member

States as were invited to do so by the Economic and Social Council should

be allowed to sign.

Mr. FE~LER (Legal :Department) regretted that the represen­

tative of the USSR had misunderstood his statement. He had mentioned

the 1948 Protocol on Narcotic Drugs as an example of an occasion on Which

all State's had been invited by the General Assembly to accept an

international convention. That invitation was not made in the Protocol

itself. Further, General Assembly Resolution 211 (Ill) also referred to

the terms of General Assembly Resolution 54 (I) Which advised the Secretary­

General that no such invitation should be sent to Spain.

Mr. MALIK (Lebanon) said that article 23 presented three

problems: first, it must be decided what procedur~ should be adopted

for implementing the Covenant. The representative of the United States

of America had mentioned the discussions in the. Third Oommittee with

regard to the Convention on the gathering and transmission of

news. After lengthy debate, the ComID1ttee had decided

Ito adopt



.~if
.. r

\
.J

to adopt the three successive stages of signature, ratification and

acceptance.' He was in favour of a similar procedure in respect of the'

Covenant.

Secondly, it must be decided what number of ratifications by

States should determine the Covenant's entry into force. The

United States bad suggested a tentative minimum of fifteen, Denmark was

in favour of twenty or twenty-i'ive, and France proposed ratifications

by two -thirds of the States Members of the United Nations, including

two permanent Members of the Security Council. He wos unable to

support any of those proposals. Ratification by two-thirds of the

Members of the United Nations in particular would postpone the entry

into force of the Covenant for far too long. He would prefer it to

be possible for the Covenant to come into force between any number of

States, no matter how few. states which were the first to sign and

ratify the Covenant Were presumably anxious to put it into effect

insidb their own territories, and it should be made possible for them

to do so at once. There was no need to s tipulate any number of

ratifications before the entry into force of the Covenant. After

much discussion on the same topic in the Third Committee, in connexton

with the draft conventions on the international right of correction and

the transmission of news, the cOill2aratively low number of six bad been

decided on as a compromise. He himself would prefer the Covenant

to be valid between any number of states J but in any case the number

should be as small as possible. He was particularly opposed to the

suggestion that the putting into effect of the Covenant should be

dependent on ratification by two permanent Members of the Security Council.

The Covenant came within the sphere of the Economic and Social Council

and he feared lest such a stipulation ndght be a surreptitious attempt

to import the veto into Economic and Social Council affairs. 'The

smallest State in the United Nations was as much concerned with the

fundamental human rights guaranteed by the Covenant as the pernanent

Members of the Security Council. The entry into force of the

Covenant on HUJIJan Bights should not therefore be governed by the

ap~roval of the permanent members of the Security Council, which

was involved pre-eminently in IJolitical matters. He urged therefore

that the number of ratifications governing the entry into force 'of the

Covenant should either not be stipulated, or else be as small as

possible J and that no mention whatever should be made of the perJ:ranent

Members of the Security Council.

/LastlY,



E/0.N ,4/sB 126
Page 8

last]y, there WH~ t 1"le g;uestion of what States were to be allowed

to accede to the Covenan o , He was in sympa'thy both with the re:presentative

of the 1JSSR and the re:presentative of Denmar'k in that res:pect. Although

in principle all::;tates should be encouraged to s i.gn an instrument which

transcended :political considerations, it might be advisable in :practice to

follow the :precedent of making acce:ptance by non-Member States deIlendent

u:pon the invitation of the General Assembly.

Miss BOHIE (United Kingdom) thought that, as far as poe s Ib Le ,' it

waa advisable for the same procedure to be f'oLl.owed in all United Nations

oonventions. The.:procedure already followed had been thoroughly discussed

in the Economic and Social Oouncil and in the General Assembly and had been

tested by experience. It would therefore be wise to adopt, with slight a~aft­

1ne changes) the United States :proposal which was based on the :procedure

adopted for the draft Oonvention on the Gathering and International Trans­

mission of News. Moreover, a solemn ceremony of signing would be most

fitting'in the case under consideration.

In folloiJing the :procGcl.'ure Iald. clown in articles 15, 16 and 17 of

the above~entionedConvention, two ~uestions, as the reIJresentative of

Lebanon had potrrted out, 'ITOulO. arise, fil~stly, recarding what States

non~1embers of the United Nations would be eligible to sign and accede

to the Oovenant. In her View, it would be better to state, for political,

as well as other reasons, that non~qember States re~uired to be invited

by'the General Assembly to accede to the Covenant.

Secondly, there was the ~uestion regarding how,many signatUlnes would

be required before the Covenant could come into force. She disaGreed with

the Lebanese re:presentative on tlmt :point, and no~ed that nothinc would

prevent a small number of States from implementinJ the Oovenant ,by agreement

among themselves. In view of the importance of the document, however, a

considerable number of signatures shoulcl be re~uired for its formal entry Irrbc

force.

While inclined to sup:port the United States proposal, she sUGGested

that no final decision should be taken at that junctux'e on the tiJo l)roposals

which shoulcl be foX'vm.rcled to Governments for comment, and that the Oo~}ssion

should limit itself to considering their form only.

Mr. lOU'fFI (ECSypt) auppor ted in the main the procedure of acceptanc.

laid down in the UnJtecl States proposa.L, with the amendment sugGested

by Mr. Feller. :,U" th regard to the queatd.on whether the Covenant

should be open to all States fer Signature, he felt that, while the

IIJrinciple of



principle of universality would have been most desirable in that

instance, the accepted United Nations procedure re~uiring a General

Assembly resolution which declared a non~Member State eligible to

sign, should be followed.

With regard to the question of entry into force, he suggested,

as a ,compromise, that the Covenant should be signed by thirty States

which "WOuld be equal. to about half the membership of the United Nations.

In repLy to the Lebanese representative's suggestion, he thought toot

immediate entry into force might ra f.se difficulties of implementation.

, 'Mr;'. PAVLOV (Union of' Soviet Soglalist Republios) asked for

clarification regarding the possibility of states becoming parties

to the Statute of the International COQ~t of Justice without being

Members of the United Nations, as implied in the orig~nal text of

article 23 to which the representative of Gu.atemala had referred.

/Liechtenstein

Mr. FELLER (Secretariat.) explained that Switzerland was

the only party to the Statute of the International Court of Justice

which was not a Member of the United Nations. The principality of

Mr. GARCIA BAUER (Guatemala.) supported the United States

proposal in geme:ral. He po:l,nted out, however,that the drafting of

. the first paragraph might present certain difficulties to countries

like Cyrenaica Which had attained. independence, but the statehood of

which had not yet been recognized. He therefore. preferred paragraph 1

of the original text in document E/800 which stated that the Covenant

would be open for accession to every State Member of the United Nations

or party to the Statute of the International Court of Justice and to

every other State declared eligible by resolution of t.he General Assembly.

He supported the United. States Froposal that 'bhe Covenant should

come into force as soon as fif'teen States bad acceded. thereto. A

larger number of signatures as proposed. by the French representative,·

would delay its entry into force.

The French suggestion requiring acceptance "by two permanent members

of the Security Council was not acceptable.

Since the 1948 Protocol on Narcotic Drugs had. included a provision

requiring the signature of cer ta in States which produced narcoti c

drugs, in the case of an inter:national covenant on human rights the

principle of the so.vereign equality of states set forth in Article 2,

paragraph 1, of the Charter should apply.



E!CN.4/sB 128
Page 16

Liechtenstein had submitted an aFFlication in that regard to the

Security Council which had not yet taken any action thereon.

Mr. EN'lEZAM (Iran) suppor-ted the amended United States

proposaj, bhat the Covenant should be open for accession to all

States. With regard to the ~uestion of the re~uired number of

signatures, he endorsed the Egyptian proposal Froviding f0r thirty

signatures firstly, because that would involve one half the membership

of the United Nations, and secondly, because by stating a specific

number, it would obviate the difficulties of calculation which might

arise in connexion with the French proposa.L,

With regard to the ~uestion of eligibility of States to accede to

the Covenant, he was in favour of setting nd limitation. The

Covenant should be open for accession to all States, whether or not

they were Members of the United Nations. Accession to the Covenant

~s not a privilege, but an undertaking which no State should be

Frevented from making. Moreover, a Frovision re~uirin8 the General

Assembly. to declare a State eligible to accede to the Covenant might

put the former into an embarrassing situation.

The meeting rose at 1 p.m.




